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AIMS OF TIIE JOURNAL by W K Plant

The Guild of One Name Studies was formed in September 1979 to encourage
the exchange of ideas and co-operative lialson between family historians
who concentrate their research on all references to a single surname,
including variants.

The aims and objectives of the guild are:-

a) To advance the education of the public an the study of geneslogy and
family history of persons with the same name and 1ts variants.

b) To promote the preservataon and publication of the resultant data,
and to maximise 1ts accessibilaty to members of the public.

It was on this basis that 'The Plant Family History Group' was formed early
1989 and this publicatzen is the fourth Journal of the Group.

Details of the artacles aincluded im the first three issues of the Journals
are contained elsevhere an this Journal and copres of the previous 1ssues
can be obtained on request at a price of £2.00 per journal for UK members
and £3,00 per Journal for overseas members.

You will see from the 1list of members that the Group has 60 members of
which 23 are from overseas. It 18 nice to know that we are now becoming
a true World Wide Group.

Since the issue of Journal No.3 I have obtained a copy of The Diary of
John Plant of Leekforth 1849-53, John Plant was a farmer in North
Staffordshire and the diary contains details of the day to day events
between the period 1849 to 53. 1 intend to include passages from the Diary
in future issues.

I have commenced a project listaing all the Plant references an the P.Q.
Commercial Directory covering Staffordshire in 1860 and 1t 15 hoped to
inclode this information in the next issue,

Thanks are due to Ranelle Sheilds {Member No.93) who has forwarded to me
the micro-fache of the Genealogical Supplement of the House of Plamt of
Macon Georgra, with a promise of the House of Plant of Macon Georgila itself,
later. Once again details will be ancluded in future issues.

Finally, thanks for all your assistance in the preparation of the Journals
and T hope that the contents of Journal No. 4 will be of interest.
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BLACKSMITH PLANTS NEAR CLOWNE
by Dr John Stewart Plant

A FAMILY OF BLACKSMITHS AROUND CLOWNE

Journal No 2. described the development of a large Plant famly at Sutton-Cum—
Duckmanton and at Clowne, between about 1730 and 1830, During this era,
several roads around the area of Sheffield (which 1s 11 miles NW of Cloune)
were 'turnpiked' and, by 1851, some of the Clowne Plants are found 1n
Sheffield. By 1806 the blacksmith Benjamin Plant, whe can be readily
associated with the Clowne Plant family, had moved to the nearby parish of
Harthill (3 miles N {rom Clowne).

TRANSPORT AND TRADE (circa 1780)

The ancient craft of blacksmith predates the development of 'modern' transport
systems, before which the only usual form of 'rapid' transport was by horse.
In the 18th century, the significant improvement in roads much stimulated
the development of trade and this was especially true around Sheffield since
appreciable commercial activity would not have been possible had the town
st1ll been cut off by lack of roads over the ring of hills around Bheffield.

Though late ain embarking upon the turnpike venture, Sheffield made up 1in
eagerness for lost tame, and ten main roads were made 1n the area by 1821,
In 1756 the road to Chesterfield, which went on to Duffield and Derby, wvas
"turnpiked'; an 1758 two Acts inaugurated the road to Wakefield and a double
road which, dividing at Ringinglow, went to Chapel-en-le~Frith by one way
to Buxton by another. The other new roads were Sheffield to Tinsley (1759),
Attercliffe to Worksop (1764), Sheffield to Penistone (1777), Sheffield to
Gander Lane near Eckaington (1779), Sheffield to Baslow (1803), Wadsley to
Langsett {1805), and Sheffield to Glossop (1821).

THE BLACKSMITHS AT HARTHILI. AND STAVELEY

Benjamin Plant and at least four of his sons were blacksmiths at Harthall,
in Yorkshire, and at nearby OStaveley, in Derbyshire. Harthill 1s 3 miles
north of Clowne, which lies midway between Chesterfield in Derbyshire and
Worksop in Nottinghamshire (at about 7 miles from each), and Staveley lies
5 mles SW of Harthall.

It seems most likely that the twice-married Benjamin of Harthill (see chart),
who may even in fact have married thrice, 1s the same as the one baptised
Benjamin an 1782 at Clowne, the son of Thomas and Ann. An alternative
contender, a related Benjamin baptised ain 1790 at Sutton-Cum-Duckmanton as
a sgon of James and Ellen, seems less likely to have been the Benjamin of
Harthill because of his substantially younger age.

The family chart on page 7 shows that Benjamin of Harthwill married first
Flizabeth (nee Bark) of the parish of Harthill in 1806 and all their chaldren
were baptised there, The baptism records show Benjamin Plant as a blacksmith
and husband of Elizabeth in 1814; and as a blacksmith but husband of Hannah
in 1819, TIn the 1841 Census for Harthill, Benjamin (blacksmith, aged 55
approx) and Ester Plant (aged 60 approx) are recorded with William (22) and
James (14), who are undoubtedly sons of Benjamin and Hannah.

93]



THOMAS OF STAVELEY

According to the Census, Benjamin's eldest son Thomas Plant was still alive
{aged 62) in 1871 in Staveley and was, like his father, a blacksmth; the
Census shows that this Thomas of Staveley was born in Harthill and anformation
from Chatsworth Estates records that he died at Steveley in 1887.

At the marriage of Thomas to Flizabeth (nee Webster) in 1833 at Old Brampton
{Chesterfield), the witnesses were Thomas Elliot and Sarah Glossops; and
the children of Thomas and Elizabeth, apart from the eldest son John (bap
1833), were haptised at Staveley (1834-45).

Their second child Mary appears to be the one who was named as the mother
of three children when they were baptised at Staveley., Thus, in the 1861
Census for 109 Chesterfield Road, Staveley, widower Thomas is recorded as
a Master Blacksmith employang 1 apprentice with unmarried daughter Mary (aged
26) and grandsons Jonathon (aged 8) and 'Benja' (aged 3). In the 1871 Census,
for 139 Chesterfield Road, daughter Mary is still unmarried and there are
grandchildren John T (assistant Blacksmith, aged 18), Benjamin (13) and Fmma
E (8) all born at Staveley.

It appears that Mary's sister, Barbara, was unmarried (aged 18) in 1861,
and a servant (and barmaid) to a family at 108 Chesterfield Road, Staveley.

JOHN OF HARTHILL

In the Harthill Darectortes of 1849 and 1852, there 1s a John Plant who is
described as a blacksmith and 1t seems that this very likely would be the
second son, John Bark Plant, of Benjamin and Elizabeth. 1In the 1851 Census
for '30 Harthill' this blacksmath John (aged 39 and born 1in Harthill) uis
shown with his wife and family, and nephew Thomas Plant (aged 17) apprentice
from Newhold Derbyshire, which i1s about a mrle to the north of Chesterfield;
this Thomas is tentatively included as a possible son of Benjamin's third
son, Joseph. Indeed, this could be the Thomas baptised (19,2.1834) to the
Joseph and lucy recorded at Chesterfield,

CHILDREN OF BENJAMIN AND HANNAH

There 1s a blacksmith William Plant from Harthill (stated age 45) an the
1861 Census, at '19 Springwell Coll' Staveley and his wife, Elizabeth, from
County Roscommon (Ireland); this William could be the fairst child of Benjamin
and Hannah,

It 1s possible that the second child of Benjamin and Hannah 1s the Samuel
recorded 1in the 1841 Census (aged 20) as being an the household of William
Leonard (physician) at Fence Cottage, Aston~Cum-Aughton (parish to the north
of Harthill),

In the 188l Mosbrough Census (near Sheffield} there 1s a general labourer
at Hill Side called Edward Plant (stated age 54) from Harthill and wife Hannah
from Eckington (two parishes west of Harthill and the one north of Staveley).
This would presumably be the fourth child of Benjamin and Hannah; children
are recorded in the IGI as baptised to Fdward and Hannah at Eckington
(1852-64), There are records of a land conveyance at Brrley (2 miles north



of Eckington) in 1852 that involved labourer Edward Plant from Mosbrough
(1n the parish of Eckangton) and his wife Hannah.

From the 1851 Census, 1t would seem that the fifth child James (then aged
23) of Benjamin and Hannsh was staying at '89 Staveley' as a blacksmith with

his blacksmith step-brother Thomas (aged 42) and family.
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LOST COUSINS by Doreen Mercer

T grew up 1n a small town an Derbyshire, My mother's maiden name was Plant;
she had two brothers, Benjamine and Alfred., Ben was the elder brother, he
Javed 1n Oxford with his wife and seven children and worked there also as

a jeweller. T knew my Uncle and Aunt laved 1n Oxford and had a lot of
children who were cousins I had never met. I only remember meeting Uncle
Ben once when he came up to Derbyshire for my grandfather's (his father's)
funeral. I remember thinking how much he looked like my grandfather.

My Uncle Alfred was a gents hair dresser; he had a barbers shop 1n town and
only one daughter who was born the same day and year as myself.

I thought a lot about my unknown cousins in Oxford as 1 was rather short
onh cousins, having only two on my father's side of the famly.

T started my research in 1980 after a visit to England to see my sick father.
I started to thank about these unknown cousins. On my return to Australia

I wrote to my Aunty as I knew Uncle Ben died some years ago. Over the years
Aunty told me bits about her children and their families. She alse told

me I had a cousin, Landa, living 1n Australia but she never told me her
address or phone number. I had no idea where to faind her, I diad not even
know her married name.

Then on 11 December 1991 1 had a surprise letter that changed all that.

It was from a lady in Canberra who said she was trywing to find out move about
her father's family, her father's name was Benjamine Plant and mothers name
was Louie. I know at once she was Landa. She had given me her address and
phone number so I phoned her at once., We had 2 long talk and now I am locking
forward to meeting my cousin for the first time in the New Year and catching
up on family news about the rest of her brothers and sisters and theur
families and, yes, Aunty Louie i1s stall living in Oxford. I1'm not sure of
her age but a2t must be around S0 by now.



CHESHIRE HEARTH TaX

W Keith Plant

The Hearth Tax operated from 1662 to 1689 and give an indication of the size
of houses at that time. Those 1n receipt of poor relief or in houses worth
less than 20 shillings per annum not payling parish rates were exempt., Other
residents were required to pay 2 shillings per hearth.

The parish constable was rvesponsible for compiling lists of house-holders
and the number of hearths., These lasts were then given to the Justices of

the Peace 1n Quarter Sessions.

Michaelmas and Lady Day.

The tax was collected twice a year at

The list of Habitants in Cheshire 1663 and Hearth Tax 1664 included the

following references to the Plant name:

Bosley John Plant
Gawsworth Widdow Plant
Robert Plant
John Plant was Constable
Butley Edward Plant
Sutton John Plant
Henry Plant
Alderley Ralph Plant
Prestbury Lawrence Plant
Tytherington Edward Plant
Congleton James Plant
Newhold Astbury Thomas Plant (husbandman)
Mgt Plant (widdow)
Odd Rode Thomas Plant (husbandman)
Lawton Edward Plant
BIRMINGHAM DIRECTORY 1870 PLANT REFERENCES W Keith Plant

Included 1n the Birmingham Directory of 1870 are the following references
to the Plant name.

Plant + Green ~ button manufacturers 16 Vattoraia St.
Plant Bros - merchants 166 Bromsgrove St.
Plant David ~ wool card maker 1% Darwan St,

Plant Elaz ~ shopkeeper 72 Kang Fdwards Rd.
Plant Robert ~ newsagent 85 Bardesley 5t.
Plant Thomas ~ brushmaker 89 Aston St.

Plant William ~ haberdasher 45 Vauxhall Rd.
Plante George Hodson ~ carver + gilder 354 Parade

I am at present researching the P.0. Commercial Directory for 1860 covering
the whole of Staffordshire, lasting all references to the Plant name. Details
will be included zn ome of the forthcoming Journals.



THE STAFFORDSHIRE BURTAL INDEX

Continued - Aaron to George listed an journal No.
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16
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3
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17
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5
12
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4
8
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Hannah dau of Mary
Hamnah

Hannah  pauper
Hannah of Shelton
Hannah wife of William
Hannah

illeg Dau of Mary

infant

Hamnah 4

Hannah 4 months

Hannah 34

Hannah 80

Hannah 63

Hannah of West Bromwich  infant
Hanngh of Leek Moor infant
Hamnmah 7 months

Hannah of back of the town 8

Hannah of Oldcot
Hannah of Lawton Law
Hannah of Leskmoor 38

38

10 months

Hannah of back of the town 59

Hannzh 71

Hannah of Spout St 62
Harnnzh 34 Hanley
Hannah 32

Hannzh of Lane Delph
Hamnah of Pershall Green
Kannah of Newport 28
Hannah of West &t 15
Harmah 37

Hannnah of Thorncliffe

Hannah of Penkhull Poorhouse

Harmnmzh of Easing 64
Hannah of Market Place
Hannah of Oulton 75
Hamnah of Mill st 16
Hannah 82

Hannah of Majors Barn
Harriet  infant
Harriet of Majors Barn
Harriett 18 months
Harriott 2 mths
Harriet of Gresley Row
Harriet infant
Harriet of Weston Jones
Harriet 27

Harriet of Great Bridge

Harriet of Pickwood Road  infant

3

2

88

8 days

69

2

0

2 weeks

2

i1

29

10

3
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W K Plant
Hanbury
Dilhocrne
Bucknall cum Bagnall
Hanley
Burslem

High Offley
Brierley Hill
Newcastle under Lyme
do
Burslem
Uttoxeter
Brierley Hill
Ieesk
Longton
Cheadle
Newchapel
Rushton Spencer
Teck
Cheadle
Uttoxeter
Teek
Norteon in the Moors
Longton
do
Eccleshall
High Offley
Leek
Betley
Rushton Spencer
Stoke on Trent
Teek
Stoke on Trent
Stone
Leek
Warslow
Cheadle
Burslem
Cheadle
Newcastle under Lyme
do
Lichfield St Michael
Burslem
Norbury
Wednesbury
West Bromwich Christ Ch.
Ieek ‘
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Jul
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Henry 2
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Henry 8 months
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Henry infant
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Isaac of Black Lane 14 months

Isaac

of Meir Green 1

Isabella of Blackberry Town 10

Isaiah of Brierley 9 weeks
Isaiah infant
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Jacob of Hobs Lane 5 days
James son of John

James son of Richard & Amne
Janmes

Janmes

Jamas 63

James from Leek

James son of William & Mary of Wolseley
Jamas

James 34

James son of William & Mary
James

James !
James

James  Blacksmith
James child
James of Beamhurst  infant
widow  (no name given)
James son of James & Sarah 1
James son of William & Jane
James 1

Janmes
James 52

James

James of Town End 63
Jamas of Bird St infant

Jas of Mear Green Stone

James
James
James
James
James
James
Janes
James
James
James
James
James
James
James
James
James
James
James

5 vr 10 mths

of Black Brock 68
40
L

of Mill st infant

of Upper Broadleigh 4
of Tipton 1
81
of Croxton 69
of Burslem 51
46
of Lane Delph
of Ieckmoor 28
10 days
of Rowley Gate 81
of the Delph 38
of ILeekmoor 89
of Grindon 48
of Buuterhill 25
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Lomgton
Stoke on Trent
Burslem
Ieek
Wedneshury
Brierley Hill
Rowley Regis
Great Bary
Cheadle
Caverswall
Rowley Reqgis
Sedgley
Brierley Hill
Dilhorne
Cheadle
Uttoxeter
Dilhorne
Kingswinford
do

Brierley H1ll
Newcastle under Lym=
Colwich
Weston on Trent
Brierley Hill
Whitmore
Bramshall
Burslem
Betley
Burslem

do
Checkley
Hanley
Brierley Hill
Tongton
Hanley
Tomgton
Hanley
Tipton
Cheadle
Lichfield st Michael
Longton
Maer
Brierley Hill
Warslow
leek
Meerbrook
Brierley Hill
Burslem
Eccleshall
Wolstanton
Cheadle
Longton
Teck
Wolstanton
Leck
Brierley Hill
Leek
Meerbrook
Stone




1833
1834
1834
1835
1835
1837
1837
1837

Feb 24 James of Park Lane 12 Endon

May 12 James of 0ld Fowker Cottage 1 Tesk

Oct 2 James of Cornhill Cross 67 Leek

2pr 15 James of Bradnop 90 do

Jun 28 James B 3 months Tongton

Apr 16 James of Oldcot 15 months Newchapel

May 18 James of the Guild 39 Forton

Nov 22 James of Harts Hill 51 Stoke on Trent

LAND MEASURE

0ld English
relationshap

Hide
Virg
Bova
Fart
Acre

= e et

Acre

Bescia

Furlong

Hide

League

Librate

Markland

Math

Mile

Pace

Perch

Stadium

Verge

MENT by W K Plant

Measurement varied from place to place but 1n General the
was

, Carvcate or Ploughland 4 Virgates or Yardlands

ate or Yardland = 2 Bovates or Oxgongs
te or Oxgang = 2 TFarthindales
hingdale = 10 Acres
= 4 Rods wide x 40 Rads long

~ The amount of land that could be ploughed by a yoke of oxen
1n a day.

— The amount of land that could be dug by one man with a spade
between 1 May and 1 August each year.

—~ A measurement of length - one eighth of a mile - 220 yards.

The amount of land whach could be ploughed 1n a year using one
plough.

-~ Generally 3 miles (15,840 feet) but could vary between 7,500
feet and 10,000 feet.

~ The amount of land worth £1.00. Tts area therefore depended
on the value of the pound and on the soil quality.

- An area varyang between 1 and 3 acres,

~ Approximately 1 acre or the amount of land that one man could
mow in a day.

— Before Standardisation it varied between 4,854 feet and 6,600
feet. The old Scottish Mile was usually 5,828 feet and the Irish
Mile 6,720 feet.

-~ Approximately 5 feet or 2 steps.

—~ Variable between 9 and 26 feet but later standardised at 163
{eet.

— A measuremenl of length equal to a Furlong.

— A variable area of land between 15 and 30 acres.
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THE PLANT FAMILY AND THE GOLDFIELDS OF QUEENSI.AND by W Keath Plant
from information principally provided
by Esmee Davies (Member No.

The name of Plant features prominently in the development of the goldfields
of Queensland Australia, principally two brothers, Edmund Harr:is Thornburgh
Plant and Charles Frederick Plant.

The brothers were considered typical of the fine colonizing class who have
been the Empires best builders and Edmund's efforts, from the outset of
hais career in Australia being for many years directed towards the development
of a1ts mineral resources. His initial experilence was gained in a very hard
school, for he was one of the earliest prospectors on the site of Ravenswood.
In fact, 1in company with others, he found this field with which he was
1dentafied until the discovery of gold at Charters Towers in 1872, whach
saw him among the ten prospectors who started the rush to what was soon
after to become a large flourishing town. With the fortunes of Charters
Towers, Edmund's own rose and in time his name became well known as one
of Australia's prominent mining men.

Charles Frederick Plant was born January 1843 and Edmund on 10 December

1844 at Nottingham, England, the sons of Charles Frederick and Maria Plant
(nee Nevy1ll),
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Birth certifacate of Edmund Harris Plant

The Children appear to have grown wup 1n comparatively affluent
surroundings receiving a reasonable education. In 1857, when aged twelve
Edmund was sent to the United States of America. Whether his brother or
any other members of the family accompamied him 1s not known. In any
event he returned to the UK in 1860 when the USA was teetering on the brink
of Civail War. At about this time his father's business collapsed and his
father became bankrupt.
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Therefore in the first 16 years of his lafe Edmund had been exposed to the
harsh andustrial forces of his native Nottaingham, had witnessed the wvalue
of techmical skill and the penalty for failure through his father's
bankruptcy. He must also have seen, during bis stay an the USA the

:
opportunities that were available for people with talenlL and ambition.

Had the Cival War not started in 1861 Edmund may well have chosen Lo stay
in the USA,

The collapse of their father's business possibly encouraged the brothers
to venture into another, more distant part of the New World and they set
sa1l for Queensland 1n late 1861 arriving early in 1862.

There 1s no record of Edmunds activaties an America, but s is possible
that he became interested in mining during the three years spent in that
country. The Californian gold rush had occurred six years previously and
he was there at the taime of the Colorado discoveraies in 1859.

There 2s no record in the Queensland Archaives relatang to the arrival of
the brothers in Australia. They could of course have disembarked in Sydney,
or may have been paying passengers, (though this would have been unlikely,)
not all of whom have been recorded.

At the time of Plamls arraval inm Australia, severe recession was ravaging
the economy 1n Queensland and geological difficulties were causing problems
to the gold-seekers. It seemed that success was reserved for those who
adopted new technology to mining and whe perfected the techniques of metal
extraction from newly discovered ore as well as {rom the tailings which
earlier, less careful producers had abandoned. Edmund Plants subsequent
achievements in the Queensland mining industry distinguished him as a skilful
extractor of gold, not simply an explorer and producer of one.

When the brothers arrived an 1862 all States except Western Australiaz had
been proclaimed separate colonies with administrative parliaments, The
population of Australia had passed one million and the wvalue of gold
produced since 1ts 1initial dascovery ten years previously exceeded £120
million. Queensland had yet to become a major gold producer, the first
significant faield, Gympie, not being discovered until 1867. The population
of Queensland 1n 1862 was less than 30,000. Port Denison (now Bowen) was
1ts most mnortherly settlement and ten years were te pass before Charters
Towers was born. ‘

At this taime, the areas around Charters Towers Goldfreld gave no hint of
the wealth stored beneath its surface. The mounds of boulder granite rising
up from the surrounding undulating, thickly-wooded country were in the midst
of a loneliness broken only hy an occasional tribe of wandering natlves
and almost unknown to white men. However, the North Kennedy district an
which Charters Towers 1s situated was not by any means unknown. Ludwig
Leichhardt, in 1844 going northward to the Gulf of Carpentaria had passed
through the then unknown Dawson and Mackenzie country and dascovering these
and their main stream, the Fatzroy had passed over the range and northward
along the Belyando and by the greater Burdekin waters, near which Charters
Towers 1s situated. Later on the stock owners, seeking fresh pastures,
followed 1n the footsteps of the explorer. Various small stations with
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connecting tracks were becoming established but generally the area had not
been explored and one of the richest gold-bearaing districts in Australia
was for many years a rough 'tip' with the gold-laden surface stone which
the discoverers of the field, Hugh Masman, J Fraser and G E Clarke came
across was lying scattered in profusion.

Initaally, on arrival in Australia, Edmund (and presumably Charles, though
this 1s not known for certain) obtained employment on a rural property some
250 miles from Brisbane, his annual income amounting to £20. He appears,
over the next 7 years to have gained pastoral and mining experience having
worked at the goldfields of Peak Down, 4 mile Creelk, Morinish and later
Rockhampton. During this period prospecting an the southern and central
mining fields, notably Rockhampton, brought him success and encouraged him
to move northward to the newly discovered Ravenswood field where he arrived
on 11 November 1809, His savings of £500 were more than enough to pay for
a mining lease on the Black Jack Reef vhere he erected the first ore
crushing m1ll (known as the Vulcan Mi111) on the field in 1870. This mill
comprised a 10 head crushing battery purchased 1n Melbourne. He was then
26 years of age and about to launch into a remarkable career in Northern
Queensland.

In 1869 Edmund was appointed to the Commission of the Peace and served as
a J.P. for many years.

Laittle 1s known of Charles Fredericks activities at thas time though it
1s probable and later confirmed by his obituary, that he accompanied Edmund
on his explorations., Certainly he was resident 1n 1884 an Ravenswood on
the occasicon of his marriage.

The Black Jack Reef was a prolific source, one crushing yielding more than
3250 ounces of gold from 526 tons of ore.

In 1871 gold was discovered at Charters Towers by three prospectors,
J Fraser, G E Clarke and Hugh Mosman.

Hugh Mosman moved from Sydney to Queensland early in 1860 and spent some
unprofitable years in the farming industry., The rich returns from the mines
at New Zealand Gully, Rockhampton, were therefore hard to resist. After
a short period he went to the Tambarcora and Ophir diggings in NSW. However,
in 1870 he returned to Queensland and the newly opened Flanders' River
country. Returning to Rockhampton he decided to set out northward
prospecting, and started on his journey in 1871, accompanied by a Mr J
Fraser. The aintervening country proved *to be barren and only moderate
success was attained at Ravenswood. It was here that a Mr G E Clarke joined
the party and their subsequent journey has been described 1n the North
Queensland Mining Registers History of Charters Towers:-—

"We spent some weeks of fruitless searching in and around Ravenswood,
which was then a promising goldfield: then we travelled on westward
prospecting the Burdekin river country. Sometimes we got a little
gold, but not what we considered payable, still we determined to
keep on for a year longer if necessary. The valley of the Burdekin
westward and north-west was untried country, and somehow, heing young,



comparatively inexperienced and enthusiastic, we were always sanguine
of discovering a good goldfaeld. T{ not, we determined to go stall
further north. It was a pleasant life, and, although disappointments
were numerous, vyet the possibilities, 1f somewhat uncertain, were
great, We prospected the Broughton branches, getting a little gold
almost everywhere we tried, becoming more plentiful as we neared
the Seventy-Mile pinnacles. A cluster of conical and square-topped
hills away to the north had often attracted our attention and we
determined to prospect in that direction. We {found gold in the
locality of the Merrie Monarch lease, but not pavable. From these
the hills were about four or five miles distant. The following day
we went through a gap between the hills, which has so long formed
the subject of our observation, and camped near the outcrop of the
North Australian reef. Masses of quartz were strewn about the
surface, which we at once saw were very vach. We prospected for
several days, finding other reefs carrying gold, and we then went
back and moved our permanent camp from the Seventy-Mile to Charters
Towers. There was not time for proving reefs by sinking so after
careful examination of surface blows we selecled the North
Australian, Ophir, and another, and Mosman travelled to Ravenswood
and applied to Warden Charters for the reward claims. Then the rush
set in, and in a few weeks there were several hundreds of miners
on the field. In the meantime we had found the Washington, 0ld
Warrior, Alexandra, 5t Patrick, and others. The Washington was,
I think, about the best surface show on the field, TFrom this reef,
from the surface alone, we took about 1,600 ozs of gold."

Sometime towards the end of the 1860's, Edmund visited the Etheridge field
with the intenticn of commencing operation there, but with the discovery
of gold at Charters Towers he moved there and in 1873 erected a 15 Stamp
M11l (The Venus) at Millchester whach he later sold prior to returning to
Ravenswood. On has return he, an 1874, established a larpe tailing mll
and two years later transferred this mll to Charters Towers where it
processed some 40,000 Tons of taillings over the next six years. Ore crushing
batteries were later added,

Not only was Edmund 1involved ain the goldfaeld at Charters Towers, for he
also had interests in the Palmer field and in copper, tin, wolfram and other
mines 1n North Queensland. He also took some interest in pastoral matters
owning cattle statiens, the first of whach was purchased in 1877.

CUNTTEbs TOWLE~ ™74
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In 1872 or 3 Edmund married Elizabeth Esther Hodel of Townville and they
raised a family of six daughters and two sons, namely:

Maria Lsther born 7 May 1876

Armenia Ann born 29 January 1879

Rosa Bosana born 5 March 1882

Maggie Janet horn 22 February 1884

Emilia Ada born 13 October 1885

Edmund Reville born 11 June 1887

George Harris Donald born 1 Apral 1890

Katie Nancy Dora born 13 May 1893 _

In 1875 he purchased "Goose Lagoon Station" near Ingham in Noerth Queensland
where he eventunally retired to.

Mr G E Clarke Mr Hugh Mosman

Edmund Plant Two of the discoverers of Charters Towers

‘ Goldfaield

In 1886 the mining activities were sold to the Bonmie Dundee Co with Edmund
Plant contanuing as Managing Divrector,

Little 1s known of Charles Frederick Plant's activities an this peraod
though 1t 1s known that in 1884 he married Isobel Marion Pegus at Charters
Towers. Isabel was born 1n Launceston, Tasmania 1858 the daughter of
Campbell John Pegus Capt. R.N. and Ellen Rosa nee Hoad.

They reaised a family of three sons and two daughters, namely:

Reginald Arthur Neville  born 28 September 1884
Hilda Florence Neville born 24 March 1886

Harold Frederwick Hoad born 18 January 1888
Eric Clive Pegus born 3 April 1890
Oenome Elfreda Maud born 29 April 1892
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It 1s belaeved that through the 1880's Charles was involved in the mining
1ndustry and must have been of some wimportance being a J.P. an 1889, At
this time he was resident at Hackett Terrace, Church Towers. According
to has obituvary in the North Queensland Register 1932, he was engaged in
Bankaing in his early lafe.

In 1888 FEdmund Plant and his family spent twelve months visiting England
returning to Australia on the S.S,'Dacca’ leaving London 6 February 1889
and arriving Brisbane 1 Aprail 1889.

The family dasembarked at Townsville the records showing that the
following members of the family made the traip:

Edmund H.T. Plant age 40 to Townsville, Salcon Class
Mrs H.T. Plant age 35 "

Miss H.T. Plant age 15 "

Maria I1I.T. Plant age 12 "

Maggie Plant age 6 "

Rosa Plant age 8 "

Emilaia Plant age 4 "

Some confusion here when compared to the dates of birth, perhaps Miss Plant
was Armenia Ann and the authorities got her age wrong. In 1889 she would
have been 10.

Edmund Neville Plant who would have been about 7 months old when the family
left Australia ain 1888 must have been left at home or was 1in the Ships
Nursery. In any event he 1s not recorded with the family,

On their return to Charters Towers construction commenced on their new home,
Thornburgh House. It was sated on Plant Ridge, adjoixnang the Bomnie Dundee
Mil3.

Thornburgh House Mr + Mrs Plant + daughter
18
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From 1890 to 1893 Edmund was a director of the Bank of North Queensland.
In the period 1892 - 1902 he served as Chairman of the Dalrymple Divisional
Board and also at tames during this period as a member of the Chamber of
Commerce, Hospital Board, Waterworks Board and the Townville Harbour Board.
He was a member of the London Art Society, Royal Colonial Institute, London
and the Australian Institute of Mining Engineers.

He was also the proprieter of Charters Towers Evening Telegraph.

The Queensland Post Office Directories for this period show the following:

1889 Homestead Edmund H Plant and James Cass -~ Graziers.
1889 Edmund H T Plant J.P. mine owner, Xing Street,
Charters Towers.
1895/6 Edmund H T Plant mine owner, Charters Towers.
Plant and Byrne, mine owners, Charters Towers.

Thornburgh House - Entrance Gates and Drive - Mr E H T Plant on left of
picture,
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"THORNBURGH HOUSE,” resldence of Mr, E, H T Plant, (Mr. Plant on sieps; Mrs, Plant with ehild)

This prcture would have been taken about 1895 and the little girl with
Mrs Plant could possibly have been Katie Nancy Dora age 3 at thas tame.

In the perlod up to the end of the century Edmund was chairman of four
mining companles as well as being on the board of directors of other
companies,

No records were kept for the farst three years of operations to show the
amount of gold obtained from the field. However, the first half year of
1875 gave 24,356 ozs of gold from 16131 Tons of Stone.

The rise of the industry can be seen from the following chart showing the
amount of gold obtained.

Year Ozs Gold
1876 52,588
1877 67,891
1878 72,189
1879 83,257
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1880 85,298

1881 82,324
1882 79,595
1883 69,535
1884 109,335

The tincrease over the previous year due mainly to The Day Down PC mine which
alone produced 40,000 ozs,

1885 135,650

of which thifee mines The Day Daown PC, The Day Down Block and the Wyndham
produced nearly 70,000 ozs.

1886 144,379
1887 151,377
1888 137,522
1889 165,352

This year was notable for the discovery of the Brilliant reef at the 765ft
level in the Brilliant Mine. Edmund Plant was a director of this company
(see page 30 ) but when he was appointed to the board is not known.

The Brailliant Gold Mine Company was the 'mother' mine of the Brilliant line
of reef, a lease of 25 acres taken up in 1886. It was supposed that the
Day Down and Queen line of reefs would junction somewhere in this ground,
and though local piophets ridiculed the 1dea a company was formed. For
three years the sinking of shafts was carried out without success, At a
meeting of directors it was decided to 'come up' the shaft and put zn a
drive on a formation passed through at 765{t. Within a very short distance
a reef 3ft thick increasing to Bft rich 1in gold was found. The months of
anxiety and ridicule were at an end and probably the most productive mine
of all came 1nto operation.

1890 164,022
1891 223,103

of which Brailliant Mine produced 36,605 czs from 21,328 tons of stone,

1892 262,962
1893 259,243
1894 268,874
1895 256,557
1896 234,139
1897 360,489

This year was a record year, to date, the chief returns coming from the
Bralliant which crushed 32,770 tons of stone for a yield of 40,337 ozs of
gold.

1898 457,849



The returns f{rom the Principle Mines in 1898 was as follows:—

Company

Bralliant

Brilliant Block
Brilliant and St George
Bralliant Extended
Brailliant Freeholds
Braillaant Central

Bank of Hope

Bonnie Dundee

Cravens Caledonia

Clarks Brallirant and
Worcester and Victory
Day Down PC

Day Down Block and Wyndham
Kellys Queen Block

M1lls Day Down Utd
Milletts Wellington
Moonstone Consols
Moonstone Extended
Moonstone Towers Extended
No 7 North East Queen
New Queen

Papuan, Brill and Victoria
Phoebe

Queen Cross Reef

Victory

Victoria

Victoria and Queen

Victoria and Caledonia Block

Mount Leysham Syndicate

The Bonnie Dundee Mine of which Edmund Plant was Managing Director covered
a total area of 33 acres on which three shafts had been sunk.

Tons Stone Ozs Gold Men Employed
33,056 37,404 165
15,802 11,569 110
28,758 43,652 160
11,987 6,704 80
1,209 706 -
941 440 -
8,349 8,312 85
2,915 3,492 72
1,959 2,719 32
i,611 1,973 30
4,157 14,946 80
34,140 41,106 150
5,136 12,042 100
2,253 937 -
715 1,019 -
1,314 2,933 13
210 440 -
171 540 -
705 1,060 -
6,765 5,909 50
5,373 6,118 63
5,533 6,299 90
4,621 6,949 60
2,875 7,981 63
6,979 12,285 68
6,276 9,961 86
1,902 4,527 50
2,934 1,766 -

depth of 1100ft, No. 2 to 800ft and No. 3 to 1816ft,

in 1898 to sink No. 2 shaft to a depth of 2,100ft in order to reach the
though whether this was ever carried out

very productive Bralliant reef,

1s not known,

THE BONNIE DUNDEE MINE

No.l to a
Plans were laid down
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The Charters Towers field peaked in 1899. Deep maining, to depths of 3,000ft
attempted to extend the life of the field, but by 1910 1t was clear that
the rich grades of ore did not persist at depth and by 1920 all but one
major mine had closed, Production in 1920 amounted to 10,000 ozs of gold
and the 1industry which had begun 1ts decline in 1900 finally collapsed.
The decline brought stagnation to the area and caused a huge movement of
pecple to the coastal areas.

Edmund Plant was considered to be a draiving force in the development of
the mining industry. A self-taught mining engineer, a practical miner and
processor, a perceptive, courageous investor, he helped prolong the period
of prosperity of the gold faelds,

Let us now return to Charles ¥Frederick Plant and his family.

For many years whilst resident in Charters Towers he commanded the Kennedy
Regimenl 1n which Major-General Sir Brudnell White and other officers who
later became distinguished, served under ham.

The Queensland P.0., Directories list him as a Captain 1n the Queensland
Defence Force A Company resident in Charters Towvers.

In 1898 he moved to Brasbane to lave in retirement at Ashgrove, the P.O,
Directories for 1901/3 showing

Major Charles I Plant, Woodland St., Ashgrove, Brisbane.

Durang his vretirement he maintained his 1interest 21n the Queensland
Volunteers, for a number of years as commander of the Queensland Ruifles,
the F.0. Records showing until his death ain 1932, he lived at Woodland St.
In 1916 he was promoted to the rank of Colonel.

He was interested (as was Edmund) in the work of the Red Cross during the
First World War and about 1915 was one of the founders of the Queensland
Red Cross Society. He was honorary treasurer for many years.

For the last thirty years of his life he was one of the trustees of the
Brisbane Boys and Girls Grammar Schools being honorary ftreasurer to the
trustees.

His wife, Isobel Marian Plant nee Pegus, predeceased him, dying in 1929,
Her death certaificate contained the following information:

Died at Woodland St., Ashgrove, Brisbane 7 September 1929
Aged 71 years

Buried 9 September 1929 Toowong Cemetary, Brishane
Religion - C of E.

Born - Launceston, Tasmania.

Marraied — Charters Towers, Queensland, at age 26 years,
Father -~ Camphbell John Pegus, Capt. R.N.

Mother - Ellen Rosa nee Hoad.

Children of Marriage (age at time of mother's death)

Regrnald Arthur Neville age 44
Hilda Florence Neville age 43
Eric Clive Pegus age 39
deceased 1 male + 1 female
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In her will she left all her jewellery to her daughters, Oenone Alfreda
Maud Finlay and Hilda Florence Neville Grant (however, QOencne had died before
her mother - see later).

Charles Frederick Plant died 7 December 1932 and has obituary in the Nerth
Queensland Register 10 December 1932 included the following:

'With the death of Lieutenant Colonel C.F. Plant at his home in
Brasbane on Wednesday, one of the last remaining links with the
early mining days of Charters Towers and the North generally is
broken. Colonel Plant was 89 years and 11 months, and retained
his mental and physical vigor unimpaired until the end, a fainting
fit on Saturday, being the first andication of his last 11llness’.

His Death Certificate contained the following anformation:

Of thear

Died at 'Ferndale' Woodland St., Ashgrove 7th December 1932
Aged 89 vears. Retired Lieut. Colonel

Buried - Toowong Cemetary, Brisbane, Queensland
Religion — C of E

Cause of Death - Myocarditis + Cardiac failure
Born in Nottaingham, Nottinghamshire,

laived about 49 years in Queensland

Father - Frederack Plant, Lace Maker

Mother - Maria nee Neville

Married - Charters Towers, Queensland 1884
Informant - J, M. Grant, son-in-law

Chaldren of marriage (ages atL father's death)

Reginald Arthur Nevalle age 48
Hilda Florence Neville age 46
Eric Clive Pegus Neville age 42
deceased 1 male + 1 female

children the following information 1s known:

Reginald Arthur Neville born 28 September 1884

In 1920/21 was ADC to Lieut-Governor of Queensland and lived at
Fernberg Road, Rosalie, Brisbane

In 1921/22 was private secretary to Administrator of Darwin

Had rank of Captain at time of fathers death.

Hilda Florence Neville born 24 March 1886
Married J. M. Grant

Harold Frederick Hoad bhorn 18 January 1888

In 1913-16 was a Medical Officer resident at Wickham Terrace,
Braisbane,

Was krlled at Pozieris duraing the Farst World War

Erac Clive Pegus born 3 Aprail 1890

In 1911/13 1listed as laeut Plant residing at Musgrove Road,
Red Hall, Brisbane

Had rank of Lieutenant Colonel at the time of his fathers death.
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Oenone Elfrada Maud born 29 April 1892
Married ?  Fanlay
died ¢ 1928

We now return to Edmund Plant and his family.

Between 1900 and 1925 the Queensland P.0. Directories contain the following
information:

1901 E.H.T. Plant, Managing Direclor, Bonnie Dundee Gold Maining Co.
1901/3 E.H.T. Plant, Chairman Divisional Board, King St., Chartersz Towers.
1905 E.H.T. Plant, Chairman Divisional Board, King St., Charters Towers.

1906/7 Hon Edmund H.T. Plant M.L.C. King St., Charters Towers.

1910/11 Edmund H.T. Plant, Managing Director, Day Dawn Gold Mine Ltd.

1909/10 Piants Deep Mines Ltd., Charters Towers.

1911/12 Edmund H.T. Plant, Managing Director, Day Dawn Geold Mine Ltd.

1912/13 Hon. Edmund H.T. Plant M.L.A., King St., Charters Towers,
Plants Day Dawn Gold Mine Ltd., Charters Towers.

1913/14 Hon Edmund H.T. Plant M.L.A. Kang St., Charters Towers.

1914/21 Hon Edmund H,T. Plant M.L.A. King St., Charters Towers,

1924/25 Edmund H.T, Plant, farmer, Ingham.

In 1905, he became a Member of the Legislative Councail, representing
Northern Queensland as a Liberal until his retirement in 1922,

During the 1901-3 period of depression, caused by the tick pest and drought
he became involved in farming and 1t would appear, from the P.0, Directory
records, that he did not become actively engaged again in the mining
industry until 1910,

On Sunday 13 October 1918 a meeting of representatives of the Charters
Towers Methodist and Presbytarian Churches was convened an the Central
Methodast Church by the Rev. R. E. Bacon.

Its purpose was the consideration of a scheme to establish a college for
North Queensland children, under the joint auspices of the two churches.

The scheme had been the subject of earlier discussions between Rev. R.
E. Bacon and Edmund Plant, the latter having endorsed the idea and granted
an option to Rev, Bacon on his home, Thornburgh House, which at that time,
was for sale.

At the 13 October meeting the committee of representatives accepted the
scheme for establishing a college together with the proposal to buy
Thornburgh House, conditional on approval beang sought from the Presbytarian
Assembly and the Methodist Conference at thelr meetings early in 1919.

However, before the Assembly and Conference had convened, evenis occurred
which necessitated an immediate decasion on the project, What happened
was that Edmund received an offer for the property from the Church of
England Sisters of Townsville and Edmund, who was facing an adverse property
market, due to the decline an the mining andustry, advised R. E. Bacon
that his option on the property would be held for just twenty—four hours.
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A hastily convened committee meeting took place on Sunday 10 November and
a decision to purchase Thornburgh House was taken without prior reference
to the Assembly or Conference, An amount of £50 was contributed by three
members of the committee as a deposit,

On Monday 11 November 1918 at 11.00 a.m. Bacen and Plant met, the deposit
accepted and agreement reached on the payment of £1,000 at Lhe beginning
of each succeeding month untal the full purchase price of £3,000 had been
met. Thanks to the efforts of Rev. Bacon the obligation was met and
Thornburgh College was opened for tuition on 16 June 1919 with the officaal
opening taking place on 23 Apral 1920,

In 1920 after relinguishing Thornburgh House, Edmund retired to his sugar
farm Goose Lagoon at Ingham, before fainally settling in 1925 at The
Esplanade, Sandgate, Queensland where he died on 28 Apral 1926.

He was described as quiet, unassuming, trather sclitary and 1n success
uncstentatious, modest, tolerant and generous and, 1in adversaity, gquiet
and undismayed.

Edmund's Death Certificate contained the following information:-

Name — Edmund Harris Thornburgh Plant
Died at — The Esplanade, Sandgate, Queensland.
Date of Death - 28 April 1926.
Aged -~ 81 years 4 months.
Date of Buraai - 29 April 1926 at Bald Hills Cemetary.
Religion - Church of England.
Occupation — Retired Mining Prospector,
Cause of Death — Bronchiectosis + Broncho Pneumonia
Taxaemia + Exhaustion
Cardiac Falure + Syncope
Born - Nottingham, Nottinghamshire.
Father - Frederic Plant - Lace manufacturer.
Mother - Maria nee Neville,
Chirldren of marriage (ages at fathers death)
Maria Esther age 49
Armenaa Ann age 47
Maggie Janet age 43
Emilia Ada age 40
George Harris Donald age 36
Katie Nancy Dora age 34
Deceased 1 male + 1 female.

The will of Edmund Plant contains the following extracts:

To my son George Harris Donald Plant I leave my large album of
photographs, my gold watch and gold chain, trinkets and case of mineral
spacimans, )

To Eleanor M Tord (former nurse to my deceased wife,) and Annie Savage,
my wife's sister — £100 each.

My property in Hanron Street, Townsville, allotments 1, 2, 11, 12
4+ 13 not to be sold unless necessary.

Estate to be divided equally between children.
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Note:- There was mention that Rosa had pre-deceased him
by a few weeks and her share was to be divaded
between her children and kept an trust till they
attain the age of 21 years.

The will also contains the following statement:

'T direct that my funeral 1s to be of the simplest description and
that only relatives be 1invited to attend the same and that the
headstone to be erected to mark my last resting place shall be of
the plainest kind, 1t being my wish and desire to avoid both
ostentation and expense in the matter’.

Mo (0 H I Piant
ilon I 8T M.,

Of Edmund and Elizabeth Esther, children, Maria Esther married Frank Webb
who worked at the Toowcomba branch of the London Bank of Australia: Rosa
Bosana married Alfred Loveden Musgrave and died just prior Lo her father
on 6 April 1926 - Alfred Musgrave was engaged 1n sugar—growing 1in the
Herbert district.

The two younger children, Maggie Janet and Katie Nancy Dora married
respectively Harold Burkett of the Queensland National Bank and Leslie
Gibson a Southern Queensland farmer.

One of the other daughters, Armenia Ann or Emilia Ada, served as an army
sister with the A.I.F., during the Great War, mainistering to the sick and
wounded on transport duty, and on the Egyptian and Continental fronts,
She laved with her father during his last years.

Edmunds oldest son, Edward Neville, died during the First World War -
detarls not known.
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His other son George Harris Donald was educated at Melbourne Grammar School
and, on leaving, he entered a course of training at the Charters Towers
School of Mines, He was i1nvolved in the maining industry at Charters Towers
and Mount Morgan, until the outbreak of the First World War, when he
volunteerd for service with the A.I.F, He gained his commission and fought
in Northern ¥rance and Belgiun, being severely wounded at Paschendale on
20 September 1917, On regaining his strength he returned to Australia
where he was deployed on military matters until his demobilization after
the Armistice. He then purchased 'Gosford' Farm near Halifax, Gosford
being located in a large sugar producing area,

The house was described as a large two storied structure and aits
surroundings are among the most desirable in the distract, the house being
artistically appointed with the grounds well laid out containing a variety
of sub-tropircal foliage and a fernery in which many rare plants flourish.

In 1915 George married Maude Matilda, daughter of Mr William Helton, a
native of Victoria and a descendant of 0Old English stock.

According to the Queensland P.0. Directory, George from 1630 to 1938
represented Australian Sugar Producers Assocciation Ltd, Barbon Street,
Bundaberg, Queensland and in 1941 he was a Commission Agent, of Tarpgo
Street, Bundaberg, Queensland,

Qosronas  HoMmgaTLaD

The Involvement of the Plant Family 1in the activities of Queensland was

considerable and perhaps the best way to fimish this article 1s to repeat
an appreclation given in

History of Queensland: Its People and Industries relative to Edmund Plant

"His name should be perpetuated in the mining history of the State
for the part he played in connection with the development and progress
of Charters Towers. Not only this city, but Northern Queensland as
a whole, has benefited by the energy, enterprise and exceptional
abilaty which, in his active days, distinguished this pioneer, who
started life in his adopted country 1n the early sixties as a young
man 1n his teens."
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FAMINE IMMIGRANTS

by W Keath Plant

~ Irish Immigrants arriving at the Port of New York 1846-1851 -

The Record office of the Maraitime Museum, Albert Dock, Liverpool, contains
the following references to the name of Plant.

1.

'"Ouford'

'Tndiana’

Plant

"Northumberland'

Plant
Plant

Plant
Plant
Plant

"Huguenot'
Plant

'"Patrick Henry'
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant
Plant

'"Vactoria'

Plant

Plant
Plant

Plant
Plant
'"Industry’

Plant

2 January 1847

Catherine

21 April 1848

Emma

Emma
Cereksidy
Henry
Frank

26 November 1847

George

3 April 1848

William
Humphrey
Mary

Mary

William

23 Apral 1849

Eilen

21 August 1849

Mary
Nancy

Hannah

Peter

7 September 1849

William

From Laverpool

age 18 Female

From London

age 30 Female
age 8 Female
age 6 Female
age 5 Male
age 4 Male

From Liverpool
age 21 Male

From Liverpool
age 24  Male
age 26 Male
age 22  Female
age 20 TFemwale

age 00 Male
From Liverpool

age 20 Female

From Laverpool

age 50 Female
age 22  Female
age 18 Female

age 00 Male
From Dublin

age 16 Male

31

Occupation
unknown

Farmer
Chald
Child
Chald
Chxld

labourer

Farmer
Farmer
Occupation
unknown
Occupation
unknown
Infant

Occupation
unknown

Wife of

Labourer
Wife of

Tabourer
Infant

Occupation
unknown



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

' John—-R-Skaddy'

"Java' 2

'Shirley'

'"Wave'! 9

'St George'

"niverse'

"Tryingham’

"New York'

"Yactoria'

Plant George
Plant ¥Flizabeth
Plant Jno

Plant Jno

1 February 1849

age 30 Male
age 28 Temale
age 02 Male
age 00 Male

October 1848  From Liverpool

Plant *
28 March 1851
Plant Peter

FPlant Ann

November 1850

Plant ?

Plant Jane
Plant Margaret
Plant Elaizabeth

22 March 1851
Plant John

22 March 1851
Plant Richard

24 July 1851
Plant George

22 August L1831
Plant William

23 August 1851

Plant William

age 25 Female

From Liverpool

age 27 Male
age 24  Female

From Liverpool

age 40 Female
age 19 Female
age 13  Female
age 13  Female

From Liverpool
age 30 Mszle
From Liverpocl
age 33 Male
From Laverpool
age 21 Male
From lLdverpool
age 17  Male
From Limerick

age 17 Male

32

From Liverpeool

Labourer
Labourer
Chald
Infant

Occupation
unknown

Labourer
Occupation
unkngwn

Occupation
unknown
Occupation
unknown
Occupation
unknown
Occupation
unknown

Farmer

Carpenter

Labourer

Labourer

Labourer



LIST OF ARTICLES IN ISSUE NO. 1 DECEMBER 1990

Aims of the Journal
Origin of the Name
Occurrence of the Name
Members Interests
Plant City -~ Florida

Plant and Fishers
Dudley Port Ironworks

Ellworth Hall Plants
Episode 1 —~ Barly Years

Pottery Plants — Trade descriptions

The Conversion of monetary value to 1985 figures
Plants boxing Booth

Robert Plant of Cheadle

Trederick Plant 1903-1972 and his influence on
the Pottery Industry

Copies of Journal No, 1 are available at a price of £2.00 (U.K.) and
£3.00 {overseas).
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LIST OF ARTICLES IN ISSUE NO 2  JUNE 1991

Aims of the Journal

William Plant - Stockport Grammar School

Plants — Leicester 1851 Census

Members Interests

Early Staffordshire Plants

John Plant & Hannah Weddon of Branford, Connetticutt
. Detective Work

The Plants of Elworth Hall
(Second Instalment)

Plants who attended Oxford & Cambridge Universities
Plants at Clowne (¢ 1780)
Do you know this Lady?

Terms - Houses & Farm Buildings

Copies of Journal No., 2 are avarlable at a price of £2.00 (U.K.) and
£3.00 (overseas).
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LIST OF ARTICLES IN ISSUE NO.3 JANUARY 1992

Aims of the Journal

Members Interests

Plant of St Louis, Missouri

Mortalaty Records ~ Manchester Cathedral
Plants near Baslow

Nipper

The Staffordshire Burial Index

Useful Addresses - Staffordshire Records
014 Names for Traders and Occupations

Plants 1n the Publication of
The London Record Society

Plants of Ellworth Hall -~ Chapter No, 3
Bound Apprentices - U.S.A,
Desford - Leicestershire Records

Robert Plant - Clerk

Coprez of Journal No. 3 are available at a price of £2,00 U.K. and £3.00
overseas.
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MEMBERS OF THE GROUP
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